
EXHIBIT D 

COMPLAINTS OR JUDGMENTS AGAINST APPLICANT 

Applicant has been subject to two regulatory actions in Michigan and a related matter in 
Iowa associated with the unauthorized transfer of customer accounts or “~lamming.”~ 

Applicant does not engaging in, nor in any way condones, the practice of “slamming.” 
Applicant complies with federal slamming regulations in 47 C.F.R. $1100 et. seq., Changes in 
Preferred Telecommunications Service Providers, and applicable state law and regulation. 
Applicant has adopted procedures to guard against the unauthorized transfer of accounts that 
include requiring subscribers to sign verifiable letters of agency. The Company also utilizes 
independent third party verification to supplement the subscriber account verification process, 
and will only engage ethical sales and marketing agents whose procedures for new customer 
subscriptions comply with federal and state slamming regulations. Further, all agent contact 
with prospective subscribers must conform to standard company scripts that are consistent with 
federal slamming regulation. 

Since Applicant’s incorporation in 2001, the Company has been the subject of three 
slamming actions; two in Michigan, and one in Iowa, as discussed below. These actions have 
resulted from the improper and regrettable misjudgment of a sales agency engaged by Applicant 
to obtain subscribers, and on whom Applicant relied upon as to the validity of new customer 
account authorizations. Applicant has since terminated its relationship with this agency. 
Penalties imposed by the Michigan Public Service Commission are under appeal. The matter in 
Iowa has been settled. 

Michigan. On December 20, 2005 the Michigan Public Service Commission issued an 
Order finding that Applicant had transferred Absolute Music, LLC to Applicant’s intraLATA 
and interLATA interexchange service without subscriber authorization! On January 3 1,2006, a 
second Order was issued by the Michigan Public Service Commission, finding that Applicant 
had transferred Home Instead Senior Care to Applicant’s intraLATA and interLATA 
interexchange service without subscriber authorization.’ Both incidents stemmed from 
complaints filed by the respective complainants in mid-2005 following the actions of a 
marketingisales agency formerly engaged by Applicant. 

In both cases, the Michigan Commission found that Applicant had violated section 505 of 
the Michigan Telecommunications Act, MCL 484.2505, and Michigan Commission Order in 
Case U-11900. The unauthorized transfer of the subscribers’ intraLATA and interLATA 
services were deemed to constitute separate violations, each subject to financial penalties 
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established under Michigan law, as imposed by the Michigan Public Service Commission 
Orders. 

Applicant immediately and without hesitation, assumed full responsibility for the actions 
of the agency it had engaged. Applicant sought to refund the entire amounts collected from the 
entities, pursuant to state and federal regulations, and to settle both complaints. Applicant was, 
however, precluded from timely engaging in-state counsel and preparing for a Michigan 
Commission hearing due to delays in receipt of communications from the Michigan 
Commission, preventing an adequate defense and timely resolution of the complaints. Applicant 
has maintained that Michigan Commission action violated the Company’s due process and has 
appealed the penalties before the Michigan Court of Appeals. These appeals are currently 
pending. 

Iowa. On November 30, 2005, Applicant entered into a settlement agreement with the 
Iowa Office of Consumer Advocate (“OCA”), a division of the Iowa Department of Justice, 
resolving a complaint filed by the OCA over the unauthorized transfer of a an individual’s 
account by Applicant.6 OCA alleged that Applicant had violated Iowa Code 5476.103. Again, 
Applicant assumed full and immediate responsibility for the situation. The settlement agreement 
resulted in Applicant’s payment of a civil monetary penalty of $500.00, pursuant to Iowa Code. 
The Company further credited all amounts collected from the customer. Notably, the OCA 
acknowledged that Applicant had taken steps to “avoid occurrences of slamming” and to 
continue such efforts in the future. 

Applicant maintains that its change of marketing/sales agency and continued compliance 
with established new account verification procedures will ensure that Applicant transfer accounts 
exclusively from those new subscribers who affirmatively subscribe to Applicant’s services. 
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